

House Calendar

Tuesday, March 14, 2023

70th DAY OF THE BIENNIAL SESSION

House Convenes at 10:00 A.M.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

ACTION CALENDAR

Third Reading

H.R. 6 Updating House Rules 621

Committee Bill for Second Reading

H. 461 Making miscellaneous changes in education laws
Rep. Conlon for Education 621

NOTICE CALENDAR

Favorable with Amendment

H. 55 Miscellaneous unemployment insurance amendments
Rep. Mulvaney-Stanak for Commerce and Economic Development 621

H. 175 Modernizing the Children and Family Council for Prevention

Programs

Rep. Christie for Judiciary 632

Rep. Masland for Ways and Means 636

Rep. Squirrell for Appropriations 636

H. 206 Miscellaneous changes affecting the duties of the Department of
Vermont Health Access

Rep. Goldman for Health Care 637

ORDERS OF THE DAY

ACTION CALENDAR

Third Reading

H.R. 6

House resolution updating House Rules

Committee Bill for Second Reading

H. 461

An act relating to making miscellaneous changes in education laws

(Rep. Conlon of Cornwall will speak for the Committee on Education.)

NOTICE CALENDAR

Favorable with Amendment

H. 55

An act relating to miscellaneous unemployment insurance amendments

Rep. Mulvaney-Stanak of Burlington, for the Committee on Commerce and Economic Development, recommends the bill be amended by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 21 V.S.A. § 1301 is amended to read:

§ 1301. DEFINITIONS

~~The following words and phrases, as As used in this chapter, shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly requires otherwise:~~

* * *

(25) “Son,” “daughter,” and “child” include an individual’s biological child, foster child, adoptive child, stepchild, a child for whom the individual is listed as a parent on the child’s birth certificate, a legal ward of the individual, a child of the individual’s spouse, or a child that the individual has day-to-day responsibilities to care for and financially support.

(26) “Spouse” includes an individual’s domestic partner or civil union partner.

Sec. 2. 21 V.S.A. § 1301 is amended to read:

As used in this chapter:

* * *

(5) "Employer" includes:

(A) Any employing unit ~~which, after December 31, 1971~~ that in any calendar quarter in either the current or preceding calendar year paid for service in employment, as ~~hereinafter~~ defined pursuant to subdivision (6) of this section, wages of \$1,500.00 or more, or for some portion of a day in each of 20 different calendar weeks, whether or not such weeks were consecutive, in either the current or the preceding calendar year, had in employment, ~~as hereinafter defined~~, at least one individual (irrespective of whether the same individual was in employment in each such day). When an employing unit described in either this subdivision or subdivision (5)(B) of this section, becomes an employer within any calendar year, it shall be subject to this chapter for the whole of ~~such~~ the calendar year.

(B)(i) Any employing unit for which service in employment for a religious, charitable, educational, or other organization as defined in subdivision (6)(A)(ix) of this section is performed after December 31, 1971, ~~except as provided in subdivision (5)(C) of this section.~~

* * *

(6)(A)(i) "Employment," subject to the other provisions of this subdivision (6), means service within the jurisdiction of this State, ~~performed prior to January 1, 1978, which was employment as defined in this subdivision prior to such date and, subject to the other provisions of this subdivision, service performed after December 31, 1977,~~ performed by an employee, as defined in subsections 3306(i) and (o) of the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, including service in interstate commerce, performed for wages or under any contract of hire, written or oral, expressed or implied. Services partly within and partly ~~without~~ outside this State may by election as ~~hereinbefore~~ provided in subdivision (5)(E)(i) of this section be treated as if wholly within the jurisdiction of this State. ~~And whenever~~ If an employing unit shall have has elected to come under the provisions of a similar act of a state where a part of the services of an employee are performed, the Commissioner, upon ~~his or her~~ approval of said approving the election as to ~~any such~~ the employee, may treat the services covered by ~~said approved~~ the election as having been performed wholly ~~without~~ outside the jurisdiction of this State.

* * *

(ix) The term "employment" shall also include service for any employing unit ~~which is performed after December 31, 1971~~ by an individual in the employ of a religious, charitable, educational, or other organization ~~but only if:~~

~~(I) the service is excluded from “employment” as defined in the Federal Unemployment Tax Act solely by reason of section subdivision 3306(c)(8) of that act; and~~

~~(II) the organization had four or more individuals in employment for some portion of a day in each of 20 different weeks, whether or not such weeks were consecutive, within either the current or preceding calendar year, regardless of whether they were employed at the same moment of time.~~

Sec. 3. 21 V.S.A. § 1321 is amended to read:

§ 1321. CONTRIBUTIONS; TAXABLE WAGE BASE CHANGES

* * *

(c)(1) Financing benefits paid to employees of nonprofit organizations.

(A) Benefits paid to employees of nonprofit organizations shall be financed in accordance with the provisions of this subsection (c).

(B) ~~For the purposes of~~ As used in this subsection (c), a “nonprofit organization” is means an organization ~~(, or group of organizations),~~ described in Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code ~~which that is exempt from income tax under Section 501(a) of such the Internal Revenue Code.~~

(2) Liability for contributions and election of reimbursement. Any nonprofit organization ~~which that,~~ pursuant to subdivision 1301(5)(B)(i) of this title chapter, is, or becomes, subject to this chapter ~~on or after January 1, 1972~~ shall pay contributions under the provisions of this section, unless it elects, in accordance with this subsection, to pay to the Commissioner, for the Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund, an amount equal to the amount of regular benefits and of one-half of the extended benefits paid, that is attributable to service in the employ of ~~such the~~ nonprofit organization, to individuals for weeks of unemployment ~~which that~~ begin during the effective period of ~~such the~~ election.

(A) ~~Any nonprofit organization which is, or becomes, subject to this chapter on January 1, 1972 may elect to become liable for payments in lieu of contributions for a period of not less than one calendar year beginning with January 1, 1972 provided it files with the Commissioner a written notice of its election within the 30-day period immediately following such date or within a like period immediately following April 16, 1971, whichever occurs later. [Repealed.]~~

(B) Any nonprofit organization ~~which that~~ becomes subject to this chapter after January 1, 1972 may elect to become liable for payments in lieu

of contributions for a period of not less than 12 months ~~beginning with the date on which such subjectivity begins~~ by filing a written notice of its election with the Commissioner not later than 30 days immediately following the date of the determination ~~of such subjectivity~~ that the organization is subject to this chapter.

(C) Any nonprofit organization ~~which~~ that makes an election in accordance with ~~subdivisions (c)(2)(A) and subdivision (B) of this section will subdivision (c)(2) shall~~ continue to be liable for payments in lieu of contributions until it files with the Commissioner a written notice terminating its election not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of the calendar year for which ~~sueh~~ the termination shall first be effective.

(D) Any nonprofit organization ~~which~~ that has been paying contributions under this chapter ~~for a period subsequent to January 1, 1972 may change to a reimbursable basis~~ elect to become liable for payments in lieu of contributions by filing with the Commissioner not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of any calendar year a written notice of election to become liable for payments in lieu of contributions. ~~Sueh~~ An election under this subdivision (c)(2)(D) shall not be terminable by the organization for that year and the next year.

(E) The Commissioner may for good cause extend the period within which a notice of election, or a notice of termination, must be filed and may permit an election to be retroactive ~~but not any earlier than with respect to benefits paid after December 31, 1969.~~

(F) The Commissioner, in accordance with ~~sueh any applicable rules as adopted by the Board may prescribe,~~ shall notify each nonprofit organization of any determination ~~which he or she may make of that the Commissioner makes with regard to~~ its status as an employer and of the effective date of any election ~~which it~~ that the organization makes and of any termination of ~~sueh an~~ election. ~~Sueh~~ The determinations shall be subject to reconsideration and to appeal and review in accordance with the provisions of section 1337a of this title.

(3) Reimbursement payments. Payments in lieu of contributions shall be made in accordance with the provisions of this subdivision, including either subdivision (A) or ~~subdivision (B).~~

(A) At the end of each calendar quarter, or at the end of any other period as determined by the Commissioner, the Commissioner shall bill each nonprofit organization, or group of ~~sueh nonprofit organizations,~~ which that has elected to make payments in lieu of contributions for an amount equal to the full amount of regular benefits plus one-half of the amount of extended

benefits paid during ~~such~~ the quarter or other prescribed period that is attributable to service in the employ of ~~such~~ the organization.

(B)(i) Each nonprofit organization that has elected payments in lieu of contributions may request permission to make ~~such~~ payments as provided in this subdivision (c)(3)(B). ~~Such method of payment~~ Payment pursuant to the provisions of this subdivision (c)(3)(B) shall become effective upon approval of the Commissioner.

(ii) At the end of each calendar quarter, the Commissioner shall bill each nonprofit organization approved to make payments pursuant to the provisions of this subdivision (c)(3)(B) for an amount representing ~~one of the following:~~

~~(I) For 1972, two-tenths of one percent of its total payroll for 1971.~~

~~(II) For years after 1972, such a percentage of its total payroll for the immediately preceding calendar year as that the Commissioner shall determine. The determination shall be determines to be appropriate based each year on the average benefit costs attributable to service in the employ of nonprofit organizations during the preceding calendar year.~~

~~(III) For The Commissioner may determine a different rate for any organization which that did not pay wages throughout the four calendar quarters of the preceding calendar year, such percentage of its payroll during that year as the Commissioner shall determine.~~

(iii) At the end of each calendar year, the Commissioner may modify the quarterly percentage of payroll thereafter payable by the nonprofit organization in order to minimize excess or insufficient payments.

(iv) At the end of each calendar year, the Commissioner shall determine whether the total of payments for ~~such~~ the year made by a nonprofit organization is less than, or in excess of, the total amount of regular benefits plus one-half of the amount of extended benefits paid to individuals during ~~such~~ the taxable year based on wages attributable to service in the employ of ~~such~~ the organization. Each nonprofit organization whose total payments for ~~such~~ the year are less than the amount so determined shall be liable for payment of the unpaid balance to the Trust Fund in accordance with subdivision (3)(C) of this subsection (c). If the total payments exceed the amount so determined for the taxable year, all or a part of the excess shall, at the election of the nonprofit organization, be refunded from the Trust Fund or retained in the Trust Fund as part of the payments ~~which that~~ may be required for the next calendar year.

(C) Payment of any bill rendered under subdivision (2) or ~~subdivision (3)~~ of this subsection (c) shall be made not later than 30 days after the bill is mailed to the last known address of the nonprofit organization or is otherwise delivered to it, unless there has been an application for redetermination by the Commissioner or a petition for hearing before a referee in accordance with subdivision (3)(E) of this subsection (c).

(D) Payments made by any nonprofit ~~corporation~~ organization under the provisions of this section shall not be deducted or deductible, in whole or in part, from the remuneration of individuals in the employ of the organization.

(E)(i) The amount due specified in any bill from the Commissioner shall be conclusive on the organization unless, not later than 30 days after the date of the bill, the organization files an application for reconsideration by the Commissioner, or a petition for a hearing before a referee, setting forth the grounds for ~~such~~ the application or petition.

(ii) The Commissioner shall promptly review and reconsider the amount due specified in the bill and shall thereafter issue a redetermination in any case in which ~~such~~ an application for redetermination has been filed. Any such redetermination shall be conclusive on the organization unless, not later than 30 days after the date of the redetermination, the organization files a petition for a hearing before a referee, setting forth the grounds for the petition.

(iii) Proceedings on the petition for a hearing before a referee on the amount of a bill rendered under this section or a redetermination of ~~such~~ the amount shall be in accordance with the provisions of section 1331 of this title, and the decision of the referee shall be subject to the provisions of that section. Review of the decision of the referee by the Employment Security Board shall be in accordance with, and its decision shall be subject to, the provisions of section 1332 of this title.

(F) Any employer, including the State of Vermont ~~which,~~ that makes payments in lieu of contributions under this section shall be subject to the provisions of sections 1314, 1322, 1328, 1329, 1334, and 1336 of this title as follows:

(i) ~~that~~ The employer shall be liable for any reports as required by the Commissioner ~~may require~~ pursuant to sections 1314 and 1322 of this title;

(ii) ~~that~~ The employer shall be liable for any penalty imposed pursuant to sections 1314 and 1328 of this title;

(iii) ~~that~~ The employer shall be liable for the same interest on past due payments pursuant to subsection 1329(a) of this title;

(iv) ~~that~~ The employer shall be subject to a civil action for the collection of past due payments as if those payments were contributions pursuant to subsections 1329(b) and 1334(a) of this title; ~~and~~.

(v) ~~that~~ The employer shall be subject to ~~those~~ actions for the collection of past due payments as if those payments were contributions pursuant to subsections 1329(c) and (d), ~~and~~ 1334(b) and (c), and section 1336 of this title; however, those provisions shall not apply to the State of Vermont.

(4) Authority to terminate elections. If any nonprofit organization is delinquent in making payments in lieu of contributions as required under this subsection, the Commissioner may terminate ~~such~~ the organization's election to make payments in lieu of contributions as of the beginning of the next taxable year, and the termination shall be effective for that and the next taxable year.

(5) Allocation of benefit costs.

(A) Each employer that is liable for payments in lieu of contributions shall pay to the Commissioner for the Trust Fund the amount of regular benefits plus the amount of one-half of extended benefits paid that are attributable to service in the employ of ~~such~~ the employer.

(B) If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages paid by more than one employer and one or more of ~~such~~ the employers are liable for payments in lieu of contributions, the amount payable to the Trust Fund by each employer that is liable for ~~such~~ payments in lieu of contributions shall be ~~determined in accordance with subdivisions (5)(A) and (B) of this subsection~~ (e):

~~(A) — Proportionate allocation when fewer than all base-period employers are liable for reimbursement. If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages paid by one or more employers that are liable for payments in lieu of contributions and on wages paid by one or more employers who are liable for contributions, the amount of benefits payable by each employer that is liable for payments in lieu of contributions shall be an amount which that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid to the individual as the total base-period wages paid to the individual by ~~such~~ the employer bear to the total base-period wages paid to the individual by all of his or her the individual's base-period employers.~~

~~(B) — Proportionate allocation when all base-period employers are liable for reimbursement. If benefits paid to an individual are based on wages~~

~~paid by two or more employers that are liable for payments in lieu of contributions, the amount of benefits payable by each employer shall be an amount which bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid to the individual as the total base-period wages paid to the individual by the employer bear to the total base-period wages paid to the individual by all of his or her base-period employers.~~

(6) Group accounts. Two or more employers that have become liable for payments in lieu of contributions, in accordance with the provisions of this section and section 1380 of this title, may file a joint application to the Commissioner for the establishment of a group account for the purpose of sharing the cost of benefits paid that are attributable to service in the employ of ~~such~~ the employers. Each application shall identify and authorize a group representative to act as the group's agent for the purpose of this section. Upon ~~his or her~~ approval of the application, the Commissioner shall establish a group account for ~~such~~ the employers effective as of the beginning of the calendar quarter in which ~~he or she~~ the Commissioner receives the application and shall notify the group's representative of the effective date of the account. The account shall remain in effect for not less than two years and thereafter until terminated at the discretion of the Commissioner or upon application by the group. Upon establishment of the account, each member of the group shall be liable for payments in lieu of contributions with respect to each calendar quarter in the amount that bears the same ratio to the total benefits paid in ~~such~~ the quarter that are attributable to service performed in the employ of all members of the group as the total wages paid for service in employment by ~~such~~ the member in ~~such~~ the quarter bear to the total wages paid during ~~such~~ the quarter for service performed in the employ of all members of the group. The Board shall ~~prescribe regulations~~ adopt rules as it deems necessary with respect to applications for establishment, maintenance, and termination of group accounts that are authorized by this subdivision, for addition of new members to, and withdrawal of active members from, such accounts, and for the determination of the amounts that are payable under this ~~section~~ subsection by members of the group and the time and manner of ~~such~~ the payments.

(7) ~~Notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions of this section, any nonprofit organization that prior to January 1, 1969, paid contributions required by this section, and, pursuant to subsection (c) of this section, elects within 30 days after January 1, 1972, to make payments in lieu of contributions, shall not be required to make any such payment on account of any regular or extended benefits paid, on the basis of wages paid by such organization to individuals for weeks of unemployment which begin on and after the effective date of the election until the total amount of benefits equals the amount (1) by which the contributions paid by the organization with~~

~~respect to the two-year period before the effective date of the election under subsection (b) of this section exceed (2) the total amount of unemployment benefits paid for the same period that were attributable to service performed in the employ of the organization and were charged to the experience rating record of the organization. [Repealed.]~~

* * *

(f) Any employer who makes payments in lieu of contributions under the provisions of this section is considered to be self-insuring and shall pay to the Commissioner for the Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund ~~such~~ any amounts as the Commissioner finds to be due under this chapter, including benefits paid but denied on appeal or benefits paid in error ~~which~~ that cannot be properly charged either against another employer who makes payments in lieu of contributions or against the experience-rating record of another employer who pays contributions. Benefits improperly paid where repayment by the claimant is ordered pursuant to subsection 1347(a) or (b) of this title will be credited to the employer's account when repayment from the claimant is actually received by the Commissioner.

Sec. 4. NONPROFIT AND MUNICIPAL REIMBURSABLE EMPLOYERS; EDUCATION; OUTREACH

(a) On or before October 1, 2023, the Commissioner of Labor, in consultation with the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, and other interested stakeholders, shall develop information and education materials for nonprofit and municipal employers regarding the unemployment insurance system. At a minimum, the materials shall:

(1) explain the options available to nonprofit and municipal employers, including paying regular unemployment insurance contributions, reimbursing the Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund for attributable unemployment insurance costs, and, with respect to nonprofit employers, quarterly payments of estimated unemployment insurance costs;

(2) identify the potential benefits and drawbacks of each of the options identified in subdivision (1) of this subsection;

(3) provide information on how a nonprofit or municipal employer can evaluate its potential liability under each of the options identified in subdivision (1) of this subsection;

(4) provide information developed by the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, and other interested stakeholders regarding how a nonprofit or municipal employer

can plan and budget for the potential expenses associated with each of the options identified in subdivision (1) of this subsection; and

(5) provide additional information regarding the Unemployment Insurance program and related laws that the Commissioner determines, in consultation with the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, and other interested stakeholders, to be helpful or necessary for nonprofit and municipal employers.

(b)(1) The informational and educational materials developed pursuant to subsection (a) of this section shall be made available on the Department's website and shall, in coordination with the Secretary of State, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, and other interested stakeholders, be shared directly with Vermont nonprofit and municipal employers to the extent practicable.

(2) The Secretary of State shall assist the Commissioner of Labor in identifying and contacting all active Vermont nonprofit employers. The Office of the Secretary of State shall also make available on its website a link to the information and educational materials provided on the Department of Labor's website pursuant to this section.

(c) The Department of Labor, in collaboration with the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, Common Good Vermont, United Way of Northwest Vermont, and other interested stakeholders, shall hold one or more informational sessions to present the materials and information developed pursuant to subsection (a) of this section to nonprofit employers and municipal employers. At least one session shall be held on or before November 1, 2023. Each session shall allow for both in-person and remote participation and shall be recorded. Recordings shall be made available to the public and to stakeholder organizations for distribution to their members.

Sec. 5. 2021 Acts and Resolves No. 183, Sec. 59(b)(6) is amended to read:

(6) Sec. 52g (prospective repeal of unemployment insurance benefit increase) shall take effect upon the payment of a when the cumulative total amount of additional benefits paid pursuant to 21 V.S.A. § 1338(e) when, compared to the rate at which benefits would have been paid under the formula set forth in 21 V.S.A. § 1338(e) on June 30, 2025 equal to \$92,000,000.00, plus the difference between \$8,000,000.00 and the amount of additional benefits paid out pursuant to section 52b, if any, compared to the amount that would have been paid pursuant to the provisions of 21 V.S.A. § 1338(f)(1) on June 30, 2022, equals \$100,000,000.00 and shall apply to benefit weeks beginning after that date.

Sec. 6. UNEMPLOYMENT DUE TO URGENT, COMPELLING, OR
NECESSITOUS CIRCUMSTANCES; COVERAGE; IMPACT;
REPORT

(a) On or before January 15, 2024, the Commissioner of Labor shall submit a written report prepared in consultation with the Joint Fiscal Office to the House Committee on Commerce and Economic Development and the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs regarding the potential impact of extending eligibility for unemployment insurance benefits to individuals who separate from employment due to urgent, compelling, or necessitous circumstances, including the individual's injury or illness, to obtain or recover from medical treatment, to escape domestic or sexual violence, to care for a child following an unexpected loss of child care, or to care for an ill or injured family member.

(b) The report shall include:

(1) a list of states in which individuals who separate from employment due to circumstances similar to those described in subsection (a) of this section are eligible for unemployment insurance and shall identify the specific circumstances for separation from employment in each identified state for which there is no waiting period or period of disqualification related to the circumstance;

(2) information, to the extent it is available, regarding the number of approved claims in the states identified pursuant to subdivision (1) of this subsection where the individual separated from employment due to circumstances similar to those described in subsection (a) of this section;

(3) an estimate of the projected range of additional approved claims per year in Vermont if individuals who separate from employment due to circumstances similar to those described in subsection (a) of this section are made eligible for unemployment insurance;

(4) an estimate of the range of potential impacts on the Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund of making individuals who separate from employment due to circumstances similar to those described in subsection (a) of this section eligible for unemployment insurance; and

(5) any recommendations for legislative action.

Sec. 7. DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE SURVIVORS'
TRANSITIONAL EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM; UTILIZATION;
REPORT

On or before January 15, 2024, the Commissioner of Labor shall submit a written report to the House Committee on Commerce and Economic Development and the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs regarding the utilization of the Domestic and Sexual Violence Survivors' Transitional Employment Program. The report shall include information regarding the utilization of the Program during the past 10 years, a summary of the Department's efforts to make members of the public aware of the Program and improve access to it, how the identified changes have impacted utilization of the Program in comparison to prior years, any potential ways to further increase awareness and utilization of the Program, and any suggestions for legislative action to improve awareness or utilization of the Program.

Sec. 8. 21 V.S.A. § 1256 is added to read:

§ 1256. NOTIFICATION TO THE PUBLIC

The Department shall take reasonable measures to provide information to the public about the Program, including publishing information on the Department's website and providing timely materials related to the Program to public agencies of the State and organizations that work with domestic and sexual violence survivors, including law enforcement, State's Attorneys, community justice centers, the Center for Crime Victim Services, the Vermont Network Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (the Network), and any others deemed appropriate by the Commissioner in consultation with the Network.

Sec. 9. EFFECTIVE DATES

(a) This section and Secs. 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

(b) Sec. 2 shall take effect on July 1, 2024.

(Committee Vote: 9-0-2)

H. 175

An act relating to modernizing the Children and Family Council for Prevention Programs

Rep. Christie of Hartford, for the Committee on Judiciary, recommends the bill be amended by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 33 V.S.A. chapter 33 is amended to read:

§ 3301. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

(1) ~~“Council” means the Children and Family Council for Prevention Programs~~ Council for Equitable Youth Justice.

(2) ~~“Primary prevention” means efforts to reduce the likelihood of juvenile delinquency, truancy, substance abuse, child abuse, and other socially destructive behaviors before intervention by authorities~~ “DCF” means the Vermont Department for Children and Families.

(3) ~~“JJRA” means the federal Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1973 as reauthorized and as amended by the Juvenile Justice Reform Act of 2018, 34 U.S.C. § 11133.~~

(4) ~~“OJJDP” means the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention within the U.S. Department of Justice.~~

§ 3302. ~~CHILDREN AND FAMILY COUNCIL FOR PREVENTION~~

PROGRAMS COUNCIL FOR EQUITABLE YOUTH JUSTICE

(a) ~~A Children and Family Council for Prevention Programs is established. The Council shall consist of 21 members who shall be appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate for three-year terms. In the appointment of the members, consideration shall be given to the selection of persons who will adequately represent the interests of the beneficiaries of the primary prevention programs~~ Creation. There is created the Council for Equitable Youth Justice to serve as the State advisory group for Vermont pursuant to 34 U.S.C. § 11133. The Council supports compliance with the core requirements of the JJRA and promotes an effective Vermont juvenile justice system consistent with the legislative findings under 33 V.S.A. § 5101a.

(b) ~~The Council shall elect a chairperson, vice chairperson, and clerk from its members who shall serve for one year or until their successors are elected~~ Membership.

(1) The Council shall consist of up to 25 members who shall be appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate for three-year terms.

(2) In appointing members, consideration shall be given to the selection of persons who adequately represent the interests of youth who are in the juvenile justice system and their families.

(3) Membership shall be consistent with the federal requirements for State advisory groups pursuant to 34 U.S.C. § 11133(a)(3).

(4) A majority of the members, including the Chair, shall not be full-time employees of federal, State, or local government.

~~(c) A majority of the members of the Council shall constitute a quorum. The Council shall act only by vote of a majority of its members present and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is in attendance. Officers. The Council shall elect a chair, vice chair, and secretary or treasurer, or both, from its members who shall serve for one year or until their successors are elected.~~

~~(d) Vacancy. In the event a vacancy occurs on the Council, the vacancy shall be filled in the same manner as provided in subsection (a) subdivision (b)(1) of this section. The term of a person appointed to fill a vacancy shall terminate on the date on which the original appointment would have terminated if the vacancy had not occurred.~~

~~(e) Compensation. Council members are authorized to receive per diem compensation from federal funds as specified in 32 V.S.A. § 1010(b).~~

~~(f) Quorum. A majority of the members of the Council shall constitute a quorum. The Council shall act only by vote of a majority of its members and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is in attendance.~~

~~§ 3303. COUNCIL; DUTIES COUNCIL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES~~

~~(a) The Council shall assist State agencies and the departments in the development, improvement, and coordination of primary prevention programs and activities at the State and local levels. In providing this service, the Council shall Subject to the provisions of 32 V.S.A. § 3309, the Council shall support monitoring and reporting compliance with the core requirements of the JJRA, including:~~

~~(1) acquire and provide pertinent research data and technical assistance related to the development and practice of primary prevention programs the deinstitutionalization of status offenders;~~

~~(2) develop a State primary prevention plan that coordinates and consolidates the primary prevention planning efforts of the State agencies and departments specified in section 3305 of this title the separation of juveniles from incarcerated adults;~~

~~(3) evaluate and prepare recommendations on the prevention policies and programs developed and implemented under section 3305 of this title and submit the recommendations on or before January 1 to the Governor, the House Committees on Human Services and on Appropriations, and the Senate Committees on Health and Welfare and on Appropriations the removal of juveniles from adult jails and lockups; and~~

(4) the reduction of racial and ethnic disparities in Vermont’s juvenile justice system.

(b) [Repealed.]

~~(c) Subject to the provisions of 32 V.S.A. § 5, the Council may apply for and receive federal or private funds, or any combination thereof in order to accomplish the purposes of this chapter. To the extent that funding under the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974, as amended, permits, the Council may award grants to State and local organizations for primary prevention activities in accordance with the provisions of that act~~
Subject to the provisions of 32 V.S.A. § 5, the Council may apply for and receive federal funds for activities consistent with the legislative findings pursuant to 33 V.S.A. § 5101a and the requirements of the JJRA. The Council may obtain grants for activities pursuant to 34 U.S.C. § 11133(a)(9).

~~(d) The Council shall be attached for administrative purposes to the Agency of Human Services~~
On December 1, 2024, and every three years thereafter, the Council shall, in coordination with DCF, develop a State juvenile justice plan designed to promote an effective juvenile justice system. The plan shall be consistent with the requirements of the JJRA and the legislative findings pursuant to 33 V.S.A. § 5101a.

(e) On January 15, 2025, and every two years thereafter, the Council shall submit a written report to the Governor, the Joint Legislative Justice Oversight Committee, and DCF describing the efforts it has made to comply with the requirements of the JJRA, including the reduction of racial disparities and improving Vermont’s juvenile justice system. The report shall include an overview of federal funds received and expended to address these purposes and recommendations to improve the juvenile justice system.

(f) In carrying out its duties and responsibilities, the Council shall rely on all available data related to the State’s juvenile justice system and shall make efforts to include youth and family voices, particularly the voices of youth and members of their families who have been impacted by the system.

§ 3304. STATE PRIMARY PREVENTION PLAN

~~(a) The State Primary Prevention Plan shall provide for the use of State resources in ways that will strengthen the commitment of local communities to altering conditions that contribute to delinquency or other problem behaviors so that the burden of State-funded treatment and crisis-oriented service programs will be reduced. The Plan shall set forth specific goals, objectives, and key result areas and shall include proposals to integrate and build upon successful methods of primary prevention.~~

~~(b) By July 1 of each even-numbered year, the Council shall revise the State Primary Prevention Plan, which shall be submitted to the Governor, the House Committee on Human Services, the House Committee on Appropriations, the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare, and the Senate Committee on Appropriations. [Repealed.]~~

§ 3305. IMPLEMENTATION AND EVALUATION OF PRIMARY
PREVENTION PLAN

~~Primary prevention policies and implementation practices shall be targeted to specific goals, objectives, and key result areas and shall be consistent with the State Primary Prevention Plan. The following departments and agencies shall formulate the policies and practices:~~

- ~~(1) the Agency of Education;~~
- ~~(2) the Agency of Human Services, including all departments;~~
- ~~(3) the Department of Motor Vehicles;~~
- ~~(4) the Office of the Attorney General;~~
- ~~(5) the Agency of Commerce and Community Development;~~
- ~~(6) the Department of Labor;~~
- ~~(7) the Department of Public Safety; and~~
- ~~(8) the Department of Forests, Parks and Recreation. [Repealed.]~~

* * *

Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

(Committee Vote: 11-0-0)

Rep. Masland of Thetford, for the Committee on Ways and Means, recommends the bill ought to pass when amended as recommended by the Committee on Judiciary.

(Committee Vote: 12-0-0)

Rep. Squirrell of Underhill, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommends the bill ought to pass when amended as recommended by the Committee on Judiciary.

(Committee Vote: 10-0-2)

H. 206

An act relating to miscellaneous changes affecting the duties of the Department of Vermont Health Access

Rep. Goldman of Rockingham, for the Committee on Health Care, recommends the bill be amended by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 33 V.S.A. § 1992 is amended to read:

§ 1992. MEDICAID COVERAGE FOR ADULT DENTAL SERVICES

(a) Vermont Medicaid shall provide coverage for medically necessary dental services provided by a dentist, dental therapist, or dental hygienist working within the scope of the provider's license as follows:

(1) Preventive services, including prophylaxis and fluoride treatment, with no co-payment. These services shall not be counted toward the annual maximum benefit amount set forth in subdivision (2) of this subsection.

(2)(A) Diagnostic, restorative, and endodontic procedures, to a maximum of \$1,000.00 per calendar year, provided that the Department of Vermont Health Access may approve expenditures in excess of that amount when exceptional medical circumstances so require. Exceptional medical circumstances include emergency dental services, as defined by the Department by rule.

(B) The following individuals shall not be subject to the annual maximum benefit amount set forth in this subdivision (2):

(i) individuals served through the Community Rehabilitation and Treatment and Developmental Disability Services programs pursuant to Vermont's Global Commitment to Health Section 1115 demonstration; and

(ii) Medicaid beneficiaries who are pregnant or in the postpartum eligibility period, as defined by the Department by rule.

(3) Other dental services as determined by the Department by rule.

* * *

Sec. 2. 33 V.S.A. chapter 19, subchapter 1 is amended to read:

Subchapter 1. Medicaid

* * *

§ 1908. MEDICAID; PAYER OF LAST RESORT; RELEASE OF INFORMATION

* * *

(d) On and after July 1, 2016, an insurer shall:

(1) ~~accept~~ Accept the Agency's right of recovery and the assignment of rights and shall not charge the Agency or any of its authorized agents fees for the processing of claims or eligibility requests. Data files requested by or provided to the Agency shall provide the Agency with eligibility and coverage information that will enable the Agency to determine the existence of third-party coverage for Medicaid recipients, the period during which Medicaid recipients may have been covered by the insurer, and the nature of the coverage provided, including information such as the name, address, and identifying number of the plan.

(2) If the insurer requires prior authorization for an item or service, accept the Agency's authorization that the item or service is covered under the Medicaid state plan or waiver as if such authorization were the insurer's prior authorization.

* * *

§ 1909. DIRECT PAYMENTS TO AGENCY; DISCHARGE OF
INSURER'S OBLIGATION

* * *

(c)(1) An insurer that receives notice that the Agency has made payments to the provider shall pay benefits or send notice of denial directly to the Agency. Receipt of an Agency claim form by an insurer constitutes notice that payment of the claim was made by the Agency to the provider and that form supersedes any contract requirements of the insurer relating to the form of submission.

(2) An insurer shall respond to any request made by the Agency regarding a claim for payment for any health care item or service that is submitted not later than three years after the date of the provision of such health care item or service.

(3) An insurer shall not:

(A) deny a claim submitted by the Agency solely on the basis of the date of submission of the claim, the type or format of the claim form, or a failure to present proper documentation at the point-of-sale that is the basis of the claim, if the claim is submitted by the Agency within the three-year period beginning on the date on which the item or service was furnished and any action by the Agency to enforce its rights with respect to a claim is commenced within six years ~~of~~ following the Agency's submission of the claim; or

(B) deny a claim submitted by the Agency on the basis of failing to obtain a prior authorization for the item or service for which the claim is being submitted, if the Agency has transmitted authorization that the item or service is covered by the Medicaid state plan or waiver under subdivision 1908(d)(2) of this title.

* * *

Sec. 3. 18 V.S.A. § 4284 is amended to read:

§ 4284. PROTECTION AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

* * *

(b)(1) The Department shall provide only the following persons with access to query the VPMS:

(A) a health care provider, dispenser, or delegate who is registered with the VPMS and certifies that the requested information is for the purpose of providing medical or pharmaceutical treatment to a bona fide current patient;

(B) personnel or contractors, as necessary for establishing and maintaining the VPMS;

(C) the Medical Director of the Department of Vermont Health Access and the Director's designee, for the purposes of Medicaid quality assurance, utilization, and federal monitoring requirements with respect to Medicaid recipients for whom a Medicaid claim for a Schedule II, III, or IV controlled substance has been submitted;

(D) a medical examiner or delegate from the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner, for the purpose of conducting an investigation or inquiry into the cause, manner, and circumstances of an individual's death; and

(E) a health care provider or medical examiner licensed to practice in another state, to the extent necessary to provide appropriate medical care to a Vermont resident or to investigate the death of a Vermont resident.

* * *

Sec. 4. FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTERS; ALTERNATIVE
PAYMENT METHODOLOGY; REPORT

The Department of Vermont Health Access shall collaborate with representatives of Vermont's federally qualified health centers (FQHCs) to develop a mutually agreeable alternative payment methodology for Medicaid payments to the FQHCs. On or before December 15, 2023, the Department

shall provide a progress report on the development of the methodology to the House Committee on Health Care and the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare.

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2023.

(Committee Vote: 9-0-1)

For Informational Purposes

CROSSOVER DATES

The Joint Rules Committee established the following crossover deadlines:

(1) All **Senate/House** bills must be reported out of the last committee of reference (including the Committees on Appropriations and Finance/Ways and Means, except as provided below in (2) and the exceptions listed below) on or before **Friday, March 17, 2023**, and filed with the Secretary/Clerk so they may be placed on the Calendar for Notice the next legislative day – Committee bills must be voted out of Committee by **Friday, March 17, 2023**.

(2) All **Senate/House** bills referred pursuant to Senate Rule 31 or House Rule 35(a) to the Committees on Appropriations and Finance/Ways and Means must be reported out by the last of those committees on or before **Friday, March 24, 2023**, and filed with the Secretary/Clerk so they may be placed on the Calendar for Notice the next legislative day.

Note: The Senate will not act on bills that do not meet these crossover deadlines, without the consent of the Senate Rules Committee.

Exceptions to the foregoing deadlines include the major money bills (the general Appropriations bill (“The Big Bill”), the Transportation Capital bill, the Capital Construction bill and the Fee/Revenue bills).

NOTICE OF JFO GRANTS AND POSITIONS

Grants and Positions that have been submitted to the Joint Fiscal Committee by the Administration, under 32 V.S.A. §5(b)(3)(D):

JFO #3138: One (1) limited-service position, Statewide Grants Administrator, to the Agency of Administration, Department of Finance and Management to cover increased grant activity due to the Covid-19 pandemic. The position is funded through Act 185 of 2022. Sec G.801 of the Act appropriates ARPA funds for administrative costs related to the pandemic. This position is funded through 12/31/2026. The grant packet can be found at: <https://ljfo.vermont.gov/assets/grants-documents/ec01b0bea7/JFO-3138-packet.pdf>
[Received February 9, 2023]

JFO #3137: One (1) limited-service position to the Vermont Department of Health, Senior Health Asbestos and Lead Engineer, to perform senior professional level work to educate, advise on and enforce Vermont asbestos and lead control regulations. The position is funded through 9/30/2024 through an existing Environmental Protection Agency grant. The grant packet can be found at: <https://ljfo.vermont.gov/assets/grants-documents/a44b7c8cac/JFO-3137-packet-v2.pdf>
[Received 1/23/2023]

JFO #3136: \$5,000,000.00 to the Agency of Administration, Public Service Department, VT Community Broadband Board (VCBB) from the National Telecommunications and Information Administration, Broadband Equity, Access and Deployment Program to deliver broadband to unserved and underserved areas in Vermont. This is a 5-year grant and will fill in the technical gaps existing in the VCBB's program of broadband deployment. The grant packet can be found at: <https://ljfo.vermont.gov/assets/grants-documents/3d7b96fcb1/JFO-3136-packet.pdf>
[Received 1/23/2023]